MINUTES of the meeting of the PEOPLE, PERFORMANCE AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE held at 3.00 pm on 29 January 2018 at Committee Room C, County Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN.

These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting.

#### **Elected Members:**

- \*Mr David Hodge CBE (Chairman)
- \*Mr John Furey (Vice-Chairman)
- \*Mr Ken Gulati
- \*Mr Mel Few
- \*Mr Nick Harrison
- \*Mrs Hazel Watson

#### Officers In Attendance

Ken Akers, Head of HR&OD
Andrew Baird, Democratic Services Officers
Debbie Bala, Senior HR Adviser
Rachel Crossley, Chief of Staff
Simon Griffin, Programme Manager, Schools and Learning
Joy Hurman, Learning & Development Service Partner
Prodromos Mavridis, Senior HR Adviser (Policy)

## 1/18 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]

None received

# 2/18 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 13 NOVEMBER 2017 AND 30 NOVEMBER 2017 [Item 2]

The minutes from the People, Performance and Development Committee meetings on 13 November 2017 and 30 November 2017 were agreed as true records of those meetings.

## 3/18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]

There were none.

## 4/18 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS [Item 4]

There were none.

#### 5/18 ACTION REVIEW [Item 5]

#### **Declarations of interest:**

None

### Witnesses:

Ken Akers, Head of HR&OD

<sup>\* =</sup> In attendance

Andrew Baird, Democratic Services Officer

## **Key points raised during the discussion:**

None

### Actions/ further information to be provided:

None

**RESOLVED:** That:

The People, Performance and Development Committee noted progress on the implementation of actions from previous meetings.

## 6/18 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME [Item 6]

#### **Declarations of interest:**

None

#### Witnesses:

Ken Akers, Head of HR&OD Andrew Baird, Democratic Services Officer

## **Key points raised during the discussion:**

Attention was drawn to the Appraisal Completion Update item which
was due to be considered by the People, Performance and
Development Committee (PPDC) at its meeting on 14 June 2018.
Members stressed that it expected a high percentage of staff
appraisals to be completed by the end of the end of May.

## Actions/ further information to be provided:

None

**RESOLVED:** That;

The People, Performance and Development Committee reviewed items that it is due to consider at future meetings.

# 7/18 APPRENTICESHIP LEVY AND PUBLIC SECTOR TARGET UPDATE [Item 7]

### **Declarations of interest:**

None

#### Witnesses:

Ken Akers, Head of HR&OD Joy Hurman, Learning & Development Service Partner Simon Griffin, Programme Manager, Schools and Learning

## Key points raised during the discussion:

- 1. The report was introduced by officers who informed the Committee that there had been a reduction in the level of underspend projected against SCC's required contribution to the Apprenticeship Levy as outlined in Annex 3 to the report. Members were advised that the Council's forecast spend on apprenticeship qualifications was estimated to be approximately £900k against a mandatory contribution of £1.2m which meant there was a shortfall of £300k.
- 2. Members heard that schools across the country had been struggling to deliver apprenticeships against their required contribution to the Levy. This was mirrored in Surrey where it was predicted that schools would have a significant deficit in spending against the £840k that they had collectively been required to contribute to the Levy. Officers highlighted that there was a shortage of apprenticeship qualifications that were relevant to schools although it was anticipated that the introduction of new qualifications over time would grow interest in apprenticeship qualifications and reduce underspend against schools' contribution to the Levy.
- 3. The Committee articulated their concerns that money put into the Levy that was not spent by the Council would be retained by the Government and highlighted the importance of ensuring that this money was used on upskilling SCC and schools' staff. Further clarity was sought on what steps were being taken to increase spending on apprenticeships made available through the Levy. Officers stated that a range of measures had been introduced in a bid to boost spending by schools on apprenticeships. The main obstacle, however, was a dearth of good qualifications although a number of new programmes would be introduced in September 2018 which would improve the range and quality of available courses. Members were informed that officers aimed to ensure that schools are in a position to take advantage of these new qualifications when they became available.
- 4. Further clarity was sought on Annex 2 and the Committee asked how the allocations for the number of apprenticeships within each Directorate was calculated. Members were advised that the figures were allocated based on headcount although strategic directors were told not to pay too much about the figure as there were some Directorates that would be able to fill more apprenticeship positions than others. The Committee heard that Adult Social Care (ASC) spending in this area would be bolstered by the introduction of specific Social Work and Occupational Therapy apprenticeships.
- 5. The Committee asked how SCC was promoting apprenticeships among young people. They heard that careers events and advice were an effective way of getting through to young people. Officers further highlighted the importance of getting Ofsted to recognise that the number of apprenticeship placements taken up by former students was as much a mark of success as the number of university places schools received among former pupils. Members requested that the next update received by PPDC on the Apprenticeship Levy include

additional details on valuable apprenticeships as well as steps being taken by SCC to attract young people to taking on an apprenticeship.

## Actions/ further information to be provided:

 The next update to PPDC on the Apprenticeship Levy should include further detail on valuable apprenticeships as well as outlining steps being taken by SCC to attract young people to take on an apprenticeship (Action Ref: A1/18).

**RESOLVED:** That;

the People, Performance and Development Committee note the positive progress detailed within the report and comment on the conclusions.

# 8/18 GRIEVANCE OF POLICY REVIEW AND ADDITION TO SAFER EMPLOYMENT AND DBS POLICY [Item 8]

#### **Declarations of interest:**

None

#### Witnesses:

Ken Akers, Head of HR&OD Prodromos Mavridis, Senior HR Adviser (Policy)

## Key points raised during the discussion:

1. Attention was drawn to paragraph 4.2.2 of the Grievance Resolution Policy and Procedure attached as Annex 1 to the report. Members asked whether it was appropriate that formal grievances raised by chief officers within the Council should be referred to the Monitoring Officer and asked whether there should be a formal role for PPDC as the Committee responsible for employing chief officers. Officers were asked to amend the Policy to include a formal role for PPDC in processing grievances made by chief officers within the Council for approval at a future meeting of the Committee.

### Actions/ further information to be provided:

 Surrey County Council's Grievance Policy to be amended to incorporate a formal role for PPDC in reviewing formal grievances raised by SCC chief officers and brought back to future meeting of the Committee (Action Ref: A2/18)

### **RESOLVED:**

The People, Performance and Development Committee;

 agreed that Surrey County Council's Grievance Policy should be amended to incorporate a formal role for PPDC in reviewing formal grievances raised by SCC chief officers and brought back to a future meeting of the Committee; and ii. noted an addition to the Safer Employment and DBS Policy of the Council to codify a statutory obligation under the Childcare Act 2006.

# 9/18 ENDING EMPLOYMENT POLICY AND DYING TO WORK CHARTER [Item 9]

### **Declarations of interest:**

None

#### Witnesses:

Ken Akers, Head of HR& OD Prodromos Mavridis, Senior HR Adviser (Policy)

## Key points raised during the discussion:

- Committee Members highlighted concerns around the Council's Ending Employment Policy in particular highlighting that it needed to be clearer on SCC's approach to those found to have committed fraud. Officers were asked to amend the Policy to clearer state that those who committed fraud against the Council would be summarily dismissed and that steps would be made to claw back any money out of which SCC had been defrauded by the employee.
- Further clarity was sought on governance arrangements for agreeing redundancy for strategic directors and other senior officers. Members asked whether this was the role of the Severance Review Group or if the responsibility sat elsewhere.

#### Actions/ further information to be provided:

Members requested that the Ending Employment Policy should be brought back to the People, Performance and Development Committee on 8 March 2018 with the following amendments:

- a) policy should be amended to state that the Council will summarily dismiss Members of staff who have defrauded the Council and that SCC will seek to clawback any additional money paid to staff members as part arising from this policy which were seen to defraud the Council;
- b) references in the Policy to SCC's 'Corporate Director' should be amended to 'Strategic Director'.
- c) clarity to be provided within the Policy in regard to application of the policy in respect of Strategic Directors and officers on high pay grades where it may not be appropriate for this to be agreed by the Severance Review Group. (Action Ref: A3/18).

## **RESOLVED:**

The People, Performance and Development Committee:

 agreed that Members the amended Ending Employment Policy be brought back to the People, Performance and Development Committee at its meeting 8 March 2018; and ii. agreed in principle with an officer recommendation for the Council to sign up to the Dying to Work Charter in order to codify a commitment to support Council officers who are diagnosed with terminal illness. A template copy of the Charter can be found as Annex 2 to this document.

# 10/18 POLICY STATEMENT ON VOICE RECORDING OF HR MEETINGS [Item 10]

### **Declarations of interest:**

None

#### Witnesses:

Ken Akers, Head of HR & OD Prodromos Mavridis, Senior HR Adviser (Policy)

### Key points raised during the discussion:

1. Members discussed the Policy Statement on Voice Recording HR Meetings which had been amended following consideration at PPDC's meeting on 30 November 2017. The Committee detailed changes which had been requested to the Policy at this meeting and emphasised that staff should not be allowed to voice record formal HR meetings. Rather the Council should have the facility to enable them to record the meeting where appropriate to do so and a copy of the tape then given to the employee. The Committee asked officers to amend the Policy accordingly and bring it back to the PPDC meeting on 8 March 2018.

## Actions/ further information to be provided:

 Members agreed that provision within the Policy allowing Members of staff to record HR meetings should be removed. The amended Policy should be brought back to the People, Performance and Development Committee's next meeting on 8 March 2018 for approval (Action Ref: A4/18).

### **RESOLVED:**

The People, Performance and Development Committee agreed that the amended Policy Statement on voice recording HR Meetings should be brought back to the Committee's meeting on 8 March 2018.

# 11/18 HUMAN RESOURCES & ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY MEASURES 2017-2019 [Item 11]

_	_	_			
$\Box$				-::-	terest:
1 16	37.12	ratio	me r	7T II	HAFACT.

None

#### Witnesses:

Ken Akers, Head of HR & OD Debbie Bala, Senior HR Adviser

## Key points raised during the discussion:

- 1. The report was introduced by officers who highlighted that the HR Team was trying to improve the clarity and accuracy staffing data. Attention was drawn to a lack of clarity over the number of staff that SCC employs highlighting that this information should be evident from the number of pay slips issued by the Council. Members were informed that the indicators outlined within the report would help SCC to get more meaningful data on its workforce which would inform and influence the future structure of the organisation. The Committee also heard that improved use of granular data that was already available to the Council would highlight how it was performing against the agreed HR&OD Strategy.
- The Committee suggested that the strategy indicators should be made available to all County Councillors for their reference and asked officers to investigate whether it could be added to the Members' Portal.

### Actions/ further information to be provided:

1. Officers to investigate the possibility to make the HR & OD Strategy Indicators available through the Members' Portal (Action Ref: A5/18).

### **RESOLVED:** That;

The People, Performance and Development Committee:

- reviewed and commented on Surrey County Council's Human Resources & Organisational Development Strategy data reports developed so far; and
- ii. agreed to receive six monthly reports to review progress against these data reports.

## 12/18 2017 STAFF SURVEY RESULTS [Item 12]

#### **Declarations of interest:**

None

#### Witnesses:

Ken Akers, Head of HR& OD Rachel Crossley, Chief of Staff

#### Key points raised during the discussion:

 The report was introduced by SCC's Chief of Staff who advised Members that the report being considered by the Committee was based on early analysis of the 2017 Staff Survey results. She highlighted that the response rate was higher than what would normally be expected of a public sector organisation and provided an overview of the areas where the Council's results were highest, stating that SCC had scored well against the 'Wellbeing', 'My Manager' and 'My Team' categories. The Committee heard that the majority of services had seen their results decline when compared to the outcomes of the Staff Survey conducted in 2016 with the 'Leadership' and 'Fair Deal' categories continuing to score below other factors.

- 2. The Committee sought clarity on why the response rate from staff within Surrey Fire & Rescue Service was so low. They were informed that the survey was fully electronic for the Fire Service this year and some officers may still prefer not to use online systems. .
- 3. Members expressed disappointment that there hadn't been an improvement in any of the categories and highlighted that this was particularly concerning in relation to 'Fair Deal' given the amount of work which officers had done to implement the revised pay and reward offer. The Committee heard that the financial challenges facing the Council prevent it from implementing a significant pay award and negotiations meant that the pay award was implemented later than staff were anticipating. This has been compounded by the high rate of inflation at the time that the Staff Survey was in circulation as well as the national debate around restraints on public sector pay. The Head of HR&OD suggested that SCC should promote its Mybenefits offer for staff more effectively. Members were advised that comments made in the Survey were in the process of being collated which would allow officers to pick out key themes in relation to staff concerns.
- 4. The Committee heard that 2017 was the last of the three staff surveys that SCC had contracted Best Companies to deliver. As such, officers were considering the future of the Staff Survey and how SCC gathered the views of its staff. Members stressed the importance of maintaining staff morale given possible future redundancies across the organisations and that the survey demonstrated that staff were less satisfied than they had been the previous year. The Chief of Staff acknowledged increased anxiety among staff given the financial challenges facing SCC.

#### **Actions/ further information to be provided:**

None

**RESOLVED:** That:

the People, Performance and Development Committee noted the results of the 2017 Surrey County Council Staff Survey

# 13/18 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC [Item 13]

**RESOLVED:** That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

# 14/18 UPDATED REPORT ON ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE AND ITS IMPACT [Item 14]

**Declarations of interest:** 

None

Witnesses:

Ken Akers, Head of HR&OD Jo Donoghue, Strategic Business Partner

Key points raised during the discussion:

None

Actions/ further information to be provided:

None

**RESOLVED:** That;

the People, Performance and Development Committee noted the content of this report.

## 15/18 PAY POLICY EXCEPTIONS - JANUARY 2018 [Item 15]

**Declarations of interest:** 

None

Witnesses:

Ken Akers, Head of HR&OD

Key points raised during the discussion:

None

Actions/ further information to be provided:

None

**RESOLVED:** 

The Committee approved the recommendations as set out in the confidential minutes.

# 16/18 IMPACT OF NATIONAL LIVING WAGE ON SLEEPING-IN SHIFT PAYMENTS [Item 16]

**Declarations of interest:** 

None

#### Witnesses:

Ken Akers, Head of HR&OD

## Key points raised during the discussion:

The report was introduced by officers. The Committee asked a number of questions which were responded to by the officers present before moving to recommendations.

## Actions/ further information to be provided:

None

#### **RESOLVED:**

The Committee approved the recommendations as set out in the confidential minutes.

# 17/18 PUBLICITY OF PART 2 ITEMS [Item 17]

It was agreed that information related to Part 2 items discussed at the meeting would remain exempt.

## 18/18 DATE OF NEXT MEETING [Item 18]

The Committee noted that its next meeting would be held on 8 March 2018

Meeting ended at: 5.00 pm

Chairman